

# **CERTIFIED STAFF HANDBOOK**

Between the

## **EDUCATION ASSOCIATION**

And the

# TRIPOLI COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

For the

SCHOOL YEAR

2025-2026

Tripoli, Iowa

Tripoli Community Schools is an equal opportunity institution and does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, religion, creed, and age. There is a grievance procedure for processing complaints of discrimination. For information regarding civil rights or grievance procedures, contact Superintendent of Schools, Tripoli Community Schools, 209 Eighth Avenue, SW, Tripoli, IA 50676, phone (319) 882-4201.

#### MASTER CONTRACT

# TRIPOLI EDUCATION ASSOCIATION & TRIPOLI COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

#### SCHOOL YEAR 2025-2026

#### ARTICLE 1

#### BASE WAGES

The association proposes a 25-26 salary schedule that complies with state mandatory minimum salaries and is a combined schedule as required by IA Code 284.3A.

#### ARTICLE II DURATION

This agreement shall be effective the 1 st day of July, 2025 and shall continue in force and effect until the 30th day of June, 2030.

 The parties agree Article 11 – Wages and Salaries shall be open to negotiate base wages for the 2026-27 Master Contract and all following contract years.

#### ARTICLE III SIGNATURE CLAUSE

In witness, whereof, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be signed by their respective presidents, attested by their respective chief negotiators and their signature placed thereon, all on the 21 day of May 2025.

#### SCHEDULE C

2025-26 TRIPOLI COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT COMBINED SALARY SCHEDULE WITH TSS INDEX INCREASE TO \$6,100 WITH STEPS RECORDED

							MS/MA	MS/MA+8
		BS/BA	BS/BA+8	BS/BA+15	BS/BA+23	BS/BA+30	BS/BA+45	BS/BA+55
STEP 1	Base	34,055.00	34,736.10	35,417.20	36,098.30	36,779.40	37,460.50	38,141.60
	TSS	6,100.00	6,222.00	6,344.00	6,466.00	6,588.00	6,710.00	6,832.00
	Total	40,155.00	40,958:10	41,761.20	42,564.30	43,367.40	44,170.50	44,973.60

Tripoli Board of Education

Presiden

Chief Negotiator

Tripoli Education Association

By Kant Milan K.
President

# **Table of Contents**

### TRIPOLI COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

ARTICLE I 1	
PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE II 1	
RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE III 1	
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES	1
Step One	1
Step Two	1
Step Three	2
Step Four	2
ARBITRATION	2
ARTICLE IV 2	
ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	2
A. Use of Facilities:	2
B. Communication:	3
C. Bulletin Board:	3
ARTICLE V 3	
OTHER PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS	3
ARTICLE VI 3	
COMPLIANCE CLAUSES AND DURATION	3
A. Separability:	3
B. Printing Agreement:	4
C. Notices:	3
	ر ،
D. Duration Period:	3
E. Part-time Employees:	4
F. Administration:	4
ARTICLE VII 4	
SICK LEAVE	4
A. Sickness or Injury:	4
B. Birth or Adoption of a Child:	5
ARTICLE VIII 6	
EXTENDED LEAVE OF ABSENCE	6
A. Public Office:	6
B. Family Illness:	6
	-
C. Sabbatical Leave:	0
TEMPORARY LEAVES OF ABSENCE	C
A. Personal Leave:	C
B. Jury Duty:	7
C. Association Leave:	7
D. Immediate Family Leave:	7
E. Professional Leave:	7
F. Bereavement Leave:	8
G. Family Medical Leave Act:	S
·	c
H. Covering Teachers:	δ
I. Unpaid Leave:	8
ARTICLE X 8	
EMPLOYEE WORK YEAR	8
A. Contract Year:	8

B. Day's Pay:	8
C. Holidays:	9
ARTICLE XI 9	
EMPLOYEE HOURS	9
A. Length of the Day:	9
B. Faculty Meetings:	9
ARTICLE XII 10	
HEALTH PROVISIONS ARTICLE XIII 10	10
SAFETY PROVISIONS	10
ARTICLE XIV 10	10
EVALUATION	10
A. Notification:	10
B. Formal Observations:	10
C. Career Teacher Performance Reviews:	11
D. Written Evaluation Summaries:	11
E. Conferences:	11
F. Intensive Assistance Plan:	11
ARTICLE XV 12	
VOLUNTARY TRANSFER	12
ARTICLE XVI 12	
REDUCTION OR REALIGNMENT	12
A. Coverage:	12
B. Definition:	12
C. Notification:	13
D. Recall Provisions:	13
E. Benefits:	13
ARTICLE XVII 14	
INSURANCE	14
A. FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES	14
B. PART-TIME EMPLOYEES	14
ARTICLE XVIII	15
COMPENSATION	15
A. Salary Provisions:	15
B. Compensation for Incoming Experience:	16
C. Pay Day:	16
D. Lunch Duty Compensation:	16
E. Extra-curricular Activities:	17
F. Other Activities:	18
G. Inclusion of Salary Schedule in Agreement:	19
H. Summer Pay (Summer School) and PD/Extra Hours Over Contracted	
GRIEVANCE REPORT SALARY CHART	20 22
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING	23

#### ARTICLE I

#### **PREAMBLE**

THE **AGREEMENT** made and entered into this 23<sup>rd</sup> day of May 2017, by and between the Tripoli Community School District, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" and the Tripoli Education Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association."

#### WITNESSETH:

#### **ARTICLE II**

#### RECOGNITION

The Board of Directors of the Tripoli Community School District, Tripoli, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" recognizes the Tripoli Education Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association" as the sole and exclusive negotiating agent for all regularly employed certified personnel as set forth in the PERB certification Instrument (Case No. 286) issued by the PERB on the 3rd day of June, 1975. Case No. 286 issued by PERB includes all full-time and regular part-time professional employees including, but not limited to: classroom teachers, librarians, guidance counselors, and nurses. The following personnel shall be excluded: Superintendent, Principals, Vice-Principals, and non-professionals, and all other employees prohibited by law.

#### ARTICLE III

#### **GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES**

A Grievance is a claim by an employee, or the Association, that there has been a violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of any provision of this Agreement. A grievance may be filed no more than fifteen (15) school days from the date of the occurrence. Every teacher and the Association may present a grievance in accordance with these procedures. The parties agree to follow the steps as herein below set out in the processing of a grievance; and if at any time the Board's representative fails to give his/her written response within the time limit therein set forth, the teacher or Association may appeal the grievance to the next step at the expiration of said time limit. Any grievance not carried to the next step within the prescribed time limit, or such extension which has been agreed to, shall be automatically closed upon the basis of the last disposition. In computing time limits, only school days shall be included, and for their purpose, a school day shall end at 4:00 p.m. If a grievance is filed at the end of the school year that cannot be resolved in the stated time limits, all time limits shall be shortened so the procedure may be completed within thirty (30) school days.

#### Step One

An employee or the Association with a grievance shall first discuss it with his/her Principal with the aim of resolving the matter informally.

#### Step Two

If the grievance is not settled, it shall, within three (3) school days thereafter be set out in writing, signed by the teacher or authorized Association representative, and given to the Principal, who shall, within five (5) school days after receipt thereof, give his/her written answer to the grievant and the Association.

#### Step Three

If the grievance is not settled in Step Two, the teacher or Association may appeal the Principal's decision by giving a written notice of such appeal within three (3) school days after receipt of the Principal's decision. Within five (5) school days after receipt, the Superintendent shall meet with the teacher or Association to resolve the grievance. The Superintendent shall give a written answer within five (5) school days after the close of the discussion to the teacher and/or Association.

#### Step Four

If the grievance is not settled in the foregoing steps, then upon written notice given by the Association to the Superintendent within seven (7) school days (after the Superintendent's written answer at step three), the grievance shall be submitted to arbitration.

#### **ARBITRATION**

If the grievance is not settled in the foregoing steps, then upon written notice by the Association to the Board or its designee's written answer in the last step, the grievance shall be submitted for arbitration as follows:

The parties shall file a joint request with the Public Employment Relations Board for a list of five (5) potential arbitrators. The parties to this agreement shall determine by lot which party shall have the first right to remove a name from the list. The party having the first selection shall exercise their right within two (2) school days after the list has been received. Commencing with the other party, the Association and the Board shall have one (1) additional day each to remove the second, third, and fourth remaining names. The person whose name remains shall be the arbitrator.

The arbitrator shall not have authority to add to, subtract from, modify, change, or alter any of the provisions of the Agreement. The award of the arbitrator shall be based exclusively on evidence presented at the arbitration hearing, and the arbitrator's award shall be final and binding on the parties if the decision is supported by the preponderance of competent evidence. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any decision which requires commission of an act prohibited by law or which is in violation of the terms of this Agreement.

The costs for the services of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the Board and the Association. Any other expenses incurred shall be paid by the party incurring the same.

#### **ARTICLE IV**

#### ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

#### A. Use of Facilities:

The Association shall have the right to hold a reasonable number of meetings on school district property after regular school hours, provided such meetings in no way interfere with any aspect of the instructional program. Any out-of-pocket expenses to the school district resulting from such meetings will be borne by the Association. The Association will schedule such meetings. Such meetings will be scheduled with the Superintendent or his/her designee at least two (2) school days in advance, except in case of emergency.

#### B. Communication:

The Association shall have the right to use faculty mailboxes for a reasonable volume of appropriate announcements relating to the conduct of the negotiating unit. All materials so disseminated through school channels must be approved by the Superintendent or his/her designee.

#### C. Bulletin Board:

The Association shall be provided with bulletin board space in each school. Only authorized representatives of the Association will use bulletin boards for Association announcements, and all materials posted will relate only to the Association's official business as negotiating agent of the teaching staff. All material placed on such bulletin boards must be approved by the Superintendent or his/her designee.

#### **ARTICLE V**

#### OTHER PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

Upon appropriate written authorization from the employee, the Board shall deduct from the salary of any employee and make appropriate remittance for annuities, cancer, major medical and health, and disability insurance, or any other plans or programs jointly approved by the Association and the Board.

#### **ARTICLE VI**

#### COMPLIANCE CLAUSES AND DURATION

#### A. Separability:

Should any article, section, or clause of this Agreement be declared illegal by a court or competent jurisdiction, then that article, section, or clause shall be deleted from this Agreement to the extent that it violates the law.

#### B. Printing Agreement:

Printing of this Agreement shall be a shared expense between the Board and the Association. Format will be mutually agreed upon within thirty (30) days after the Agreement is signed. The agreement shall be presented to all employees now employed, hereafter employed, or considered for employment by the Board.

#### C. Notices:

Whenever any notice required to be given by either of the parties to this Agreement to the other, pursuant to the provision(s) of this Agreement, either party shall do so by letter at the following designated addresses or at such other address as may be designated by a party in written notification to the other party.

- 1. If by Association, to Board of Education, Tripoli Community Schools, 209 Eighth Avenue SW, Tripoli, Iowa 50676-9662
- 2. If by Board, to Tripoli Education Association, Tripoli Community Schools, 209 Eighth Avenue SW, Tripoli, Iowa 50676-9662

#### D. Duration Period:

Contract language and monitory agreement are in effect until the end of the 2025-2026 contract year.

#### E. Part-time Employees:

Any employee under contract to the school district 0.8 or more FTE will receive benefits commensurate with full-time employment. Those employees employed less than 0.8 will receive benefits commensurate with percentage FTE. An FTE is a teacher who teaches at least six periods and also has seven assigned periods.

#### F. Administration:

All references to administration in this contract refer to the Building Principal and the Superintendent.

#### **ARTICLE VII**

#### **SICK LEAVE**

#### A. Sickness or Injury:

 The Tripoli Community School District employees are granted leaves of absence with full pay for personal illness or injury:

1.	The first year of employment	10 days
2.	The second year of employment	11 days
3.	The third year of employment	12 days
4.	The fourth year of employment	13 days
5.	The fifth year of employment	14 days
6.	The sixth year of employment	15 days
7.	All consecutive years of employment until the	
	maximum of 120 days is reached.	15 days

- The amount shall apply only to consecutive years of employment in the Tripoli Community School District, and the unused portions shall be cumulative to a maximum of 120 days. The Board shall in each instance require such reasonable evidence, as it may desire, confirming the necessity for a leave of absence.
- ◆ Full pay will be granted for sick leave to the extent the employee has accumulated such sick leave.
- Any employee absent more than their sick leave credit will be on leave of absence without pay status for those days that exceed his/her sick leave credit (depending on the School Board's decision to grant leave).
- The maximum term of sick leave available to an employee shall be that leave that is available under FMLA law or the employee's accumulated sick leave, whichever is greater. Sick leave is defined as "absence for personal illness or injury" and shall not be construed to include absence necessitated by illness in the family.
- When an employee misses 3 or more days of consecutive sick leave, employee will need a
  doctor's note (includes family sick leave) upon return, hand in note to HR Department.
- Sick leave days will be counted in one-half (1/2), and full-time days. Employees accumulated leave will be reduced by one-half (1/2), or one full-time day.
- Examples:

<u>Class Periods</u>	<u>7-hour work day:</u>
2 periods or less - 1/4 day	1.75 hours or less - 1/4 day
3 or 4 periods - ½ day	1.76 to 3.5 hours - ½ day
5 or 6 periods - <sup>3</sup> / <sub>4</sub> day	3.6 to 5.25 hours - <sup>3</sup> / <sub>4</sub> day
7 or 8 periods - full day	5.26 to 7.0 hours - full day

#### Birth or Adoption of a Child:

#### 1. Time Off:

B.

Leave for the birth or adoption of a child shall be provided to an employee consistent with the provisions of the Family & Medical Leave Act. To the extent that the employee has accumulated sick leave or personal days, this leave will be with pay until the employee is released to return to work or six weeks, whichever is longer, at which time the leave will be unpaid. If the employee does not have sufficient sick leave and personal days to cover the leave, the remaining portion of the leave will be without pay. Employees must notify HR of Anticipated Start of Leave. Sick leave will be counted in ½-day increment As provided by FMLA, Health and Hospitalization will be continued as set forth in this agreement at the District's expense for up to twelve weeks of the leave. If the employee's leave exceeds twelve weeks, the employee may continue the Health and Hospitalization Insurance provided the employee is still in a paid leave status or has been granted unpaid extended leave by the Superintendent.

For Parental Leave an employee may substitute unpaid family and medical leave for the birth of a child of the employee and in order to care for that child prior to the first anniversary of the child's birth with sick, vacation and personal leave. Upon the expiration of paid leave, the family and medical leave for the birth of a child of the employee and in order to care for that child prior to the first anniversary of the child's birth is unpaid.

#### 2. Non-Qualifying Employee:

If the employee does not qualify for FMLA leave for the birth or adoption of a child, the District will grant up to eight weeks of leave. To the extent that the employee has sick leave or personal days available, the employee may use sick leave until such time that the employee is released to return to work or six weeks, whichever is later, at which time the remaining leave will be unpaid.

#### 3. Extended Leave:

Upon written request, the employee and at the sole discretion of the Board, extended leave without pay may be granted for up to the remainder of the school year that the pregnancy is terminated in cases of unusual and/or mitigating circumstances. Further, upon written request from the employee, and at the sole discretion of the Board, one additional year of extended leave without pay may be granted; however, extended leave will not be granted more than twice to any employee. The employee must notify the Board in writing before March 1 of her intention of returning to duty the next school year. The employee will be returned to a position as nearly similar to the position formally held as is available.

#### 4. Salary Schedule Placement:

The employee shall be entitled to all raises and increments if she/he teaches at least 90 days of the school year. The 90-day period need not be continuous.

#### **ARTICLE VIII**

#### **EXTENDED LEAVE OF ABSENCE**

#### A. Public Office:

Leaves of absence for a candidacy and public service shall be governed by Chapter 55 of the Iowa Code

#### B. Family Illness:

FMLA leave is available when serious illness or injury of an immediate family member requires the employee to be absent from work. Leave will be deducted from the employee's sick leave up to 10 days. The remaining eligible leave will be unpaid. The term immediate family member and serious health condition will be defined as set forth in the FMLA. If the employee has insufficient sick leave to cover the entire length of the absence, the FMLA leave shall be without pay. If the employee is not eligible for FMLA, the employee may take up to 10 days of leave. If the employee has sick leave available, the leave will be deducted from the employee's sick leave; otherwise, the leave is without pay. Immediate family includes mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother, sister, wife, husband, son, or daughter. With extenuating circumstances, upon approval from Superintendent, sick leave may be used if employee's family leave is exhausted and employee has sick leave available.

#### C. Sabbatical Leave:

One year of sabbatical leave without pay may be granted to an employee at the discretion of the Board.

#### **ARTICLE IX**

#### TEMPORARY LEAVES OF ABSENCE

#### A. Personal Leave:

- Three (3) days of personal leave will be granted each year to all teaching personnel in the Tripoli Community School District. Notice of the personal leave will be submitted one week before the date of absence, except in case of an emergency.
- Personal leave time will be counted in, 1/2, and full-time days unless leave is taken after3:15 p.m.
- Personal leave is not available the first Ten School days or the last Ten School days of the school year and on any in-service day, professional development day, or designated workday, unless approved by the Superintendent at his/her discretion.
- If no substitutes are available, Personal Days can be denied by the Building Principal.
- Days of personal leave may accumulate to a total of five (5) days (cannot total more than five days).
- Employees covered under this Agreement will be reimbursed for unused personal days at the current substitute rate up to a maximum of three (3) days in one contract year.
- The per diem rate of the employee's salary will be deducted for additional days if extenuating circumstances do not exist. Additional days may be granted by the Superintendent for extenuating circumstances, without loss of pay.
- Certified staff will have the option to trade in 10 sick days for one personal day per year (cannot accumulate more than five personal days)

#### B. Jury Duty:

- Any employee who is subpoenaed to appear for jury duty or any judicial proceeding during school hours, except matters involving Chapter 20 of the Code and/or collective bargaining, shall be granted such time.
- Any fees or remuneration the employee receives during such leave, excluding mileage, shall be turned over to the Tripoli Community School District.

#### C. Association Leave:

• Up to two (2) days shall be available for the delegate assembly representative of the Association to attend the delegate assembly at the state level. The Building Principal shall be notified in writing one week in advance.

#### D. Immediate Family Leave:

Up to ten (10) days family leave will be granted when illness or injury to an immediate family member of the employee requires his/her attention. Immediate family includes children, spouse, siblings, in-laws, parents or grandparents. Immediate family leave is available for a normal birth of a grandchild on the actual day of the birth. Leave may be available, subject to the Superintendent's approval, if there is a serious injury or sickness of a grandchild. Time will be counted in ½, or full-time days. Leave will be deducted from an employee's sick leave to the extent this leave is available, otherwise the leave is unpaid.

#### E. Professional Leave:

One professional leave day may be granted with the approval of the school administration. The employee planning to use a professional leave day shall notify his/her Principal at least one (1) week in advance of his/her absence. Any additional professional leave days are to be mutually planned by the employee and the Principal, and must have the approval of the Superintendent. Professional days shall be used for the purpose of:

- 1. Visitation to view other instructional techniques or programs.
- 2. Conferences, workshops, or seminars conducted by colleges, universities, or other educational institutions or organizations.

Within a week following the conclusion of professional leave, the employee shall meet with appropriate staff, to pass on information concerning instructional techniques, programming, program structure, and other useful information which may help to enhance staff knowledge and classroom practices. For purposes of this section, "appropriate staff" may be those in a particular department (if the information is strictly mathematics related, for example) or the entire staff of a building or the district. A copy of the written report or notification of meeting place and time shall be given to the appropriate Building Principal(s) and to the Superintendent.

If the employee uses his/her personal car for professional leave, mileage will be paid per the Federal Mileage Rate. To be reimbursed for mileage, meals, lodging, registration, etc the employee must submit a professional development form for pre-approval and provide receipts upon return. When the district requests an employee to use a professional day, all expenses regarding meals, lodging, registration, mileage, etc. will be paid by the district.

#### F. Bereavement Leave:

- In case of a death of a husband, wife, son, or daughter, a maximum of ten (10) days shall be granted.
- In case of a death in an employee's immediate family (mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother, or sister), each case will be reviewed with a maximum of five (5) days being granted.
- In case of a death of a brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparent, grandparent-in-law, or grandchild, a maximum of three (3) days shall be granted.
- One day will be granted to attend the funeral of a great-grandparent, aunt or uncle
- Up to three (3) days per school year will be granted to attend funerals of other relatives or friends.
- Bereavement leaves are to be taken within the current school year but do not need to be taken consecutively. Extenuating Circumstances will be at the discretion of the Superintendent.

#### G. Family Medical Leave Act:

The Family Medical Leave Act is incorporated in the master contract by reference. Implementation of the FMLA will result in no loss of currently negotiated rights or benefits.

#### **H.** Covering Teachers:

If a teaching staff volunteer, or are asked, to cover a period(s) for an absent teacher during their identified prep period, the covering teacher shall be paid 1/8 of the cost of a substitute per period for covering the absent teacher's class(s).

#### I. Unpaid Leave:

All certified staff must have unpaid leave approved by the Superintendent. The Superintendent will look at each situation separately to determine whether he/she will approve the request. In most cases, the Superintendent will only approve a request under extenuating circumstances to be determined by the administration.

#### ARTICLE X

#### **EMPLOYEE WORK YEAR**

#### A. Contract Year:

The in-school work year for employees contracted for the 2025-2026 school year shall not exceed one hundred eighty-four (184) days for returning employees and shall not exceed one hundred eighty-five (185) days for new employees.

#### B. Day's Pay:

The pay for one day shall be defined as 1/184th of the teacher's annual salary. There will be no TQC pay if the state defunds this mandate.

#### C. Holidays:

The regular and extended contract of employees shall include five holidays. Such holidays shall include Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas, New Year's Day, and President's Day. No employee shall be required to perform duties on any of the above holidays. If school is still in session past the Memorial Day holiday, this holiday will NOT be a paid holiday. The district will allow this day as an unpaid vacation day.

#### **ARTICLE XI**

#### **EMPLOYEE HOURS**

#### A. Length of the Day:

The arrival and departure times for all employees shall be as follows:

Elementary: Arrive 7:45 a.m. Depart 3:30 p.m. Secondary: Arrive 7:45 a.m. Depart 3:30 p.m. Fridays: Arrive 7:55 a.m. Depart 3:25 p.m.

On days when school starts late due to inclement weather, an employee's arrival time shall correspond with the delay time according to each employee's contract time.

The regular dismissal time for Fridays shall be 3:25 p.m. at both the Elementary and Middle/High School. On days of scheduled professional development/in-service activities, normal contract hours will apply unless a 48-hour notice is given to staff. On days of early dismissal for holiday/vacation periods, normal arrival and departure times as noted. On days when school is dismissed early due to holidays, vacation, or bad weather, dismissal shall be five (5) minutes after student dismissal. School will be dismissed according to the district calendar or one (1) hour early before Thanksgiving, Christmas, and spring break holiday/vacation periods.

When employees are employed under a part-time contract, the administration shall make a reasonable attempt to schedule non-contract time at the beginning or end of the day or week.

Those employees considered part-time under this contract will be present for Parent-Teacher Conferences and Professional Development (unless otherwise stated in contract) and shall be paid on a per diem basis.

On days of scheduled professional development/in-service activities, normal contract hours will apply unless a 48-hour notice is given to staff. On days of early dismissal for holiday/vacation periods, normal arrival and departure times as noted.

#### B. Faculty Meetings:

Employees may be required to attend morning or evening assignments or meetings each school year without additional compensation. Faculty meetings shall begin no later than 3:30 p.m. or begin before 7:30 a.m. Faculty meetings shall run for no more than 45 minutes. Meetings will not be called on Friday afternoons or any afternoon immediately preceding any holiday unless an emergency arises as determined by the school administration.

Notice of a faculty meeting or other assignment will be given to the employees two (2) days in advance, except in case of an emergency as determined by the school administration. Employees shall have the opportunity to suggest items for the agenda. The main topic, if any, for the meeting will be listed when notice of the faculty meeting or other assignment is given to the employees.

#### **ARTICLE XII**

#### **HEALTH PROVISIONS**

Employees whose physical or mental health, in the judgment of the administration, may be in doubt will submit to additional examinations to the extent job-related and consistent with business necessity, when requested to do so, at the expense of the school district.

The district will comply with occupational safety and health requirements as applicable to its employees in accordance with law.

NOTE: The law no longer requires a district to conduct physical examinations for all employees upon hire. However, a district could decide to continue such practice, but the physicals should only be done post-offer and any employment decisions made based on the results of such physicals should be made in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

#### **ARTICLE XIII**

#### SAFETY PROVISIONS

Employees shall immediately report cases of assault suffered by them in connection with their employment to their Principal or other immediate supervisor and to the police.

#### ARTICLE XIV

#### **EVALUATION**

#### A. Notification:

By no later than thirty (30) days after the beginning of the school year, the Building Principal or the Principal's designee shall acquaint each employee assigned to the site with the school district's evaluation instrument. No formal observations shall take place until at least five (5) days after such notification.

New employees beginning after the start of the school year shall receive the notification not later than thirty (30) days after the first day of the new assignment.

#### B. Formal Observations:

Employees shall be notified at the beginning of each school year who is scheduled for a formal evaluation. However, the employee need not be notified in advance of the actual class or classes to be observed. First- and second-year employees and employees who are on or considered for probation as a result of administrative action will be formally observed at least two (2) times during the school year. Each observation shall be at least a major portion of one (1) class period or the equivalent thereof. Nothing in this section precludes the Principal from including any information obtained from informal observations and other substantiated information.

#### C. Career Teacher Performance Reviews:

All career teachers beyond the second year of employment in the District will participate with the Principal in performance reviews at least each three years of employment and in annual reviews

regarding individual career development plan content and progress. Career teachers may receive performance reviews more often than once every three years if deemed necessary by the Principal.

#### D. Written Evaluation Summaries:

Evaluation summaries assessing the quality and degree of performance of duties assigned shall be in writing. Two (2) copies of each formal (summative) evaluation shall be signed by the Principal and employee, and each shall be given one of the copies. Employees will receive a written summative evaluation within fifteen (15) school days of completing a formal evaluation, reviewing their career development plan with an administrator.

If an employee does not agree with the contents of his or her formal summative, he or she may file a written response. The response shall be signed by the employee and the evaluator(s) to indicate knowledge of the contents and shall be filed with the personnel file copy of the evaluation summary.

#### E. Conferences:

A conference will be held with the employee to review each formal summative summary.

#### F. Intensive Assistance Plan:

The Specific Intensive Assistance Plan (IAP) provides a good faith effort to support and guide the career teacher in meeting the expectations set forth in the Iowa Teaching Standards. This plan provides a more structured and intensive mode of supervision for the staff member who is not consistently demonstrating proficiency within one or more of the Iowa Teaching Standards and Criteria.

The decision regarding the implementation of the IAP should be collaborative but may be directive. This plan is intended to provide the highest likelihood for improvement. This process may begin at any time. Because of the personal nature of this plan, confidentiality is expected of all participants. IAP consists of two phases.

#### 1. Awareness Phase:

In the Awareness Phase, the administrator identifies a problem relating to the Teaching Standards that is characteristic of a teacher's performance rather than an anomaly. The administrator should contact the staff member in writing, make him/her aware of the problem, collaboratively develop the means to resolve the problem, and schedule a time (not to exceed six weeks) to discuss resolution. If no agreement is reached on the means to resolve the problem(s), the staff member will be placed in the Assistance Phase. At the following recommendations:

- The problem is resolved and the staff member is removed from the awareness phase and continues to work within Career Teacher Expectations.
- In the event the problem is not resolved, the staff member is notified in writing and placed into the assistance phase.

#### 2. Assistance Phase:

After the final meeting of the Awareness Phase, a letter will be sent to the staff member to formally notify him/her of the placement in the Assistance Phase. A copy is forwarded to the Personnel Office and is placed in the personnel file. The staff member should also be notified of their right to request assistance from their local association. A conference will be held between the staff member and the administrator to develop an Assistance Plan that must include a specific statement of problems related to one or more of the Iowa Teaching Standards, as well as a specific-growth promoting goals that are measurable, action-oriented, realistic, and time-bound. In addition, the plan will include strategies and resources to be applied in achieving the goals,

intended timelines for strategic actions, and specific criteria for evaluating the successful completion of the plan. The summative evaluation of the teacher in the intensive assistance tier will be made at the time of the summative evaluation:

- The problem is resolved; the staff member is removed from the Assistance Plan.
- Progress is noted, the timeline is extended but may not exceed six months according to the Iowa law, and work continues in the Assistance Phase.
- The problem is not resolved; progress is not noted. Actions are then taken by the district to move towards a recommendation for non-renewal of contract.

#### **ARTICLE XV**

#### **VOLUNTARY TRANSFER**

#### Filing Request:

Employees who desire a change in grade and/or subject assignment or who desire to transfer to another building may file a written statement of such desire with the Superintendent. Such statement shall include the grade and/or subject to which the employee desires to be assigned and the school or schools to which the employee desires to be transferred, in order of preference. Such requests for transfers and reassignments for the following years shall be submitted no later than seven (7) calendar days after the notification has been posted.

#### ARTICLE XVI

#### REDUCTION OR REALIGNMENT

#### A. Coverage:

All employees under this Agreement.

#### B. Definition:

When one or more employees are to be laid off because of a decline in enrollment, reduction of a program, a change in curriculum, or budget limitation, the Board shall determine the area(s), level(s), or program(s) in which the reduction in staff will take place. The following sequential procedure shall determine the employee(s) to be laid off in the area(s), level(s), or program(s) thus determined.

- 1. Attrition: The Board shall attempt to accomplish such reduction by the normal turn-over due to retirement, resignation, transfer, etc., which have been made known to the Board prior to April 30.
- 2. Employees with emergency and/or temporary certification unless needed to maintain an existing program.
- 3. Unless needed to maintain an existing program, employees with the least seniority shall be terminated first. Part-time employees shall acquire seniority by taking their yearly fractions of full-time employment and totaling them. The total figure thus obtained will be used to place the part-time employee on the district seniority list. Seniority shall be based on the number of years of professional service by employees within the Tripoli Community School District in order to affect as few employees as possible. Reduction of full contractual positions will first be attempted, then partial reduction of contractual positions may be considered. The curricular and subject areas and levels shall include:

- a. PK 5, 6-12
- b. Classroom Teachers by content area
- c. District-wide specialists by license (Special Education, Art, Physical Education, Guidance, Foreign Language, Vocational, and Music, etc.)
- 4. In those situations where seniority cannot be the sole criterion, educational preparation shall be applied, unless the employee is needed to maintain an existing program. An existing program shall include extracurricular activities such as, but not limited to, coaching of athletics.
- 5. Evaluation of employee effectiveness shall be considered in those situations where determination cannot be made solely through application of the above steps.

#### C. Notification:

- 1. The administration shall provide written notice to affected employees and to the Association of such possible reductions of staff who may become effective the following year.
- 2. The above notice shall be given to potentially affected personnel by April 30 of each year.

#### D. Recall Provisions:

- 1. Any employee terminated pursuant to need for cutting of staff positions will automatically be considered for recall for a period of two (2) years if such desire is made known to the Superintendent.
- 2. After weighing of applicants for vacancies and finding all things equal as to competency and potential effectiveness, persons shall be recalled in reverse order of their termination.
- 3. Any employee with recall rights under this Agreement shall maintain on file with the Superintendent his/her mailing address and all previous teaching assignments. Should a vacancy occur in the teacher's seniority category or area of previous satisfactory teaching experience, the Superintendent shall notify the reduced teacher by certified mail of the vacancy. If the vacancy is of equal or more time than that held at the time of the teacher's reduction, failure to respond affirmatively to consideration within twenty (20) days of the date of the Superintendent's notice shall result in the termination of the teacher's right to recall.

#### E. Benefits:

Any employee who is re-employed for a position after termination because of changing personnel needs shall be placed on the salary schedule at the step above the one in effect at the time of departure, plus experience in another school within guidelines of Board Policy.

#### ARTICLE XVII

#### **INSURANCE**

#### A. FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES

The Board agrees to provide all full-time employees who are covered by this Agreement the following insurance coverages:

- a. Insurance (Single Plan 2) of the individual employee will be paid in full.
- b. Employees with a family policy will have a dollar amount equal to a single policy paid toward their family insurance coverage
- c. Two hundred dollars (\$200.00) per month will be paid to each FTE employee to be used toward TSA/403b retirement fund or the balance of the family policy, at the discretion of each employee. Those employees working less than 0.8 will be paid on the basis of the percentage of the time employed.
- d. The Board will pay the initial set-up fee and the monthly maintenance fee for the Pre-tax Premium Account and the Medical and Dependent Care Reimbursement Account.
- e. Employees who are new to the district will begin insurance coverage with the district on the first day of the month following the beginning of their contract.
  - 1) All full-time certified district staff will be required to take at least a single policy.
- f. Term life insurance upon the employee in the amount of \$10,000 with the double indemnity clause.
- i. All employees shall be covered by a school-financed liability insurance policy covering the negligent performance of duties within the scope of their employment.
- j. All employees shall be covered by workmen's compensation insurance paid for by the Board.

If an employee chooses a lower cost, higher deductible plan, the difference can be used toward Dental, Vision, FLEX (Medical or Dependant Care) or HSA.

#### B. PART-TIME EMPLOYEES

An insurance premium on part-time employees working less that 0.8 will be paid by the Board on the basis of the percentage of the time employed. All employees at 0.8 FTE or more will receive full insurance coverage as well as benefits.

#### ARTICLE XVIII

#### **COMPENSATION**

#### A. Salary Provisions:

The salary of each employee covered by the regular salary schedule is set forth in the salary schedule (Schedule C) subject to the following:

#### 1. Increments:

Advancements on the salary schedule shall be made only upon the recommendations of the Superintendent and the Building Principal, that the employee is rendering satisfactory service to the school system. Increments, or portions thereof, will be withheld by action of the Board if and when the service of any employee falls below professional standards as set by the Board and Administration of the Tripoli Community School District. Eligibility to receive each annual increment provided for in the salary schedule is dependent upon two (2) major factors: (1) Continued satisfactory service, and (2) Objectively established evidence of continued professional growth. Beginning with the 1997-98 school year, provided the employee satisfies the requirements mentioned above, he/she will advance one step on the salary schedule for each year of employment, and his/her salary for that increment will be at the percentage of his/her FTE.

#### 2. Horizontal Advancement:

- a. Any employee moving horizontally on the schedule will advance one (1) vertical step the first year and advance at the regular rate thereafter, regardless of years of prior experience.
- b. Whenever an employee has completed enough semester hours of study to entitle him/her to a higher classification on the salary schedule, there will be no change in status until new contracts are issued for the following year. However, if an employee has notified the SBO/Business Manager in writing by June 30th that a change in classification will be possible before the start of the next school year, a reclassification on the salary schedule will be submitted as soon as possible thereafter.
- c. The employee shall submit written evidence from the college or university verifying that the appropriate hours have been completed on or before September 1st. The official transcripts shall be submitted as soon as possible, thereafter.

#### 3. Definition of Education Lanes:

#### a. B.S. & B.A. Lane:

Shall apply to all employees possessing a Baccalaureate Degree from an accredited college or university and holding a Professional Teaching Certificate.

#### b. B.S. & B.A. +8, +15, +23, +30 Lanes:

Shall apply to all employees possessing appropriate semester credit hours beyond the Baccalaureate Degree from an accredited college or university and holding a Professional Teaching Certificate.

#### c. M.S./M.A. and B.S./B.A. + 45 Schedule:

Shall apply to all employees possessing appropriate semester credit hours beyond the Baccalaureate Degree from an accredited college or university or a Master's Degree from an accredited college or university and holding a Professional or Permanent Teaching Certificate.

#### d. M.S./M.A. + 8 and B.S./B.A. + 55 Lane:

Shall apply to all employees possessing appropriate semester credit hours in their teaching field beyond the Baccalaureate Degree or Master's Degree and appropriate credit hours in their teaching field from an accredited college or university and holding a Professional or Permanent Teaching Certificate.

#### 4. Advancement on Schedule:

To advance on schedule beyond a B.A. or B.S. degree, the following rules shall apply: Only graduate credits pertaining to the subject in which teacher is teaching or plans on teaching will be accepted; however, the Tripoli Board of Education will accept undergraduate credits if the employee is working toward an endorsement that is deemed a required curricular area needed in order for the Tripoli Community School District to maintain its accreditation. The curricular area will be posted and open to all employees. Should the Board limit the number of employees working toward an endorsement, seniority shall apply.

#### 5. Credit Barrier:

All certified employees shall attend some accredited college for at least three (3) semesters' hours or some approved study after steps 7, 12, and 17 of the salary schedule to maintain professional proficiency. The Board may waive above qualifications under special conditions. If the training barriers are not met, there shall be no salary increment until the requirements are fulfilled.

<u>Graduate</u> credit pertaining to the subject in which teacher is teaching from an accredited college or university will be allowed without administrative approval prior to taking the course. Only correspondence study credit from an accredited college or university and in the employee's teaching field will be allowed with administrative approval prior to taking the course.

#### 6. Career Increments:

Career Increments will be added to the employee's salary as follows:

Level 1 \$600 added at 15 F.T.E. years' experience at Tripoli Community School

Level 2 \$200 increments will be added each year over 15 years at Tripoli with training barrier after step 17

Beginning with the 2008-2009 school year, years of experience will be based upon years of employment. The employee's salary for that increment will be at the percentage of his/her FTE.

#### B. Compensation for Incoming Experience:

New employees entering the Tripoli Community School District will receive full credit up to seven (7) years of experience in other school systems. Teaching experience must be in other school systems. Teaching experience must be within the last 12 years to be counted. A minimum of 120 days of actual teaching experience, under contract, shall be required in order to count as a full year of experience. Compensation for Incoming Retired Staff may deviate from the Master Contract according to TEA/School Board needs. (Example: A teacher is coming back to work and not wanting to stop their IPERS, the Board, the TEA, and the teacher can work out a pay schedule to satisfy all parties.)

#### C. Pay Day:

Employees will receive their paycheck over 12 months via direct deposit on the 25<sup>th</sup> of each month. When the 25<sup>th</sup> falls on Saturday, Sunday, or during a holiday vacation, payroll will be deposited the last working day prior to the holiday. July and August checks will be available upon request after June 29 each year or have the option for contract to be paid in 10 months. New teachers to the district will have the option to receive 13 paychecks, the first to be received on the 25<sup>th</sup> of August.

#### D. Lunch Duty Compensation:

If a staff member is assigned lunchroom duty or supervision, which does not allow for a duty-free lunch break, the staff member shall be compensated with a school lunch at no cost

#### E. Extra-curricular Activities:

#### 1. Extra Duty Pay:

All certified staff members will be paid \$10.00 per hour for athletic events, musical events, or dramatics and be required to work two (2) events per school year. Employees are responsible for finding a suitable replacement if unable to work scheduled event.

#### 2. Sports Classification:

Major Sports	Minor Sports
Football	Cross Country
Wrestling	Girl's Track
Boy's Basketball	Boy's Track
Girl's Basketball	Golf
Volleyball	
Softball	
Baseball	

#### 3. Coaching Salary Scale:

The percentages are of the B.A. base.

	MAJ	OR SPORTS	MIN	OR SPORTS	AS	SSISTANT	MID	DLE SCHOOL
1st year	12%	\$4,086.60	8%	\$2,724.40	7%	\$2,383.85	5%	\$1,702.75
2nd year	13%	\$4,427.15	9%	\$3,064.95	8%	\$2,724.40	6%	\$2,043.30
3rd year	14%	\$4,767.70	10%	\$3,405.50	9%	\$3,064.95	7%	\$2,383.85
4th year	15%	\$5,108.25	11%	\$3,746.05	10%	\$3,405.50	8%	\$2,724.40
5th year	16%	\$5,448.80	12%	\$4,086.60		LIMIT		LIMIT
		LIMIT		LIMIT				

#### 4. <u>Coaching Experience Allowance Schedule:</u>

- a. When a coach accepts the assignment of a sport for the first time, he/she shall be placed on the coaching salary scale as follows: Full credit for past head and/or assistant coaching experience in the sport. Limit: 5 years credit.
- b. Coaches automatically advance up the scale to the top by satisfactory and continuous assignments.

#### F. Other Activities:

Annual	3%	\$1,021.65	Assistant Annual	1%	\$340.55
Speech	5%	\$1,702.75	Assistant Speech	3%	\$1,021.65
Cheerleader	4%	\$1,362.20	PSTO/SkillsUSA	3%	\$1,021.65
Weight Lifting Coach	4%	\$1,362.20	Student Council Advisor	3%	\$1,021.65
NHS/NEHS	1%	\$340.55	eSports	3%	\$1,021.65
Plays	5%	\$1,702.75	DECA	3%	\$1,021.65
Bowling	10%	\$3,405.50	Prom	3%	\$1,021.65

	Head			Assistant		Head	Assistant		
	Instrumental		nstrumental Instrumental			Vocal	Vocal		
1st year	10%	\$3,405.50	3%	\$1,021.65	10%	\$3,405.50	3%	\$1,021.65	
2nd year	11%	\$3,746.05	4%	\$1,362.20	11%	\$3,746.05	4%	\$1,362.20	
3rd year	12%	\$4,086.60	5%	\$1,702.75	12%	\$4,086.60	5%	\$1,702.75	
4th year	13%	\$4,427.15		LIMIT	13%	\$4,427.15		LIMIT	
5th year	14%	\$4,767.70			14%	\$4,767.70			
		LIMIT				LIMIT			

#### 1. Student Clubs-Compensation Process:

Administration-Approved Club

- a. Board approved during regular Board meeting for the upcoming year
- b. Minimum nine meetings a year
- c. Goals and expectations presented to the School Board
- d. List of students participating turned into the Principal
- e. Club must be supervised by an adult with knowledge of Club educational areas
- f. Coach/Sponsor paid 1%

#### G. Inclusion of Salary Schedule in Agreement:

The negotiated salary schedule displaying the salaries for each educational lane and step is included in this Agreement as Appendix Schedule C.

- H. Summer Pay (Summer School) and PD/Extra Hours Over Contracted Hours
- Teachers hired to teach summer school would be paid at a rate of \$30 per hour. The teacher would also receive prep time pay, at a rate of \$30 per hour. Teachers will get 15 minutes of prep time for every two hours of student contact time, not to exceed ten (10) hours for the entire program.
- Voluntary Professional Development and Extra hours over Contracted hours will also be paid a \$30 per hour. With the exception of the Voluntary TQPD day. This will be paid per diem.
- Required Professional Development and Extra hours over Contracted hours will be paid per diem.

#### **GRIEVANCE REPORT**

Date	Filed		
Tripo	oli Community School District		Distribution of Form
	Building		1. Association
NI	and Annier al Demon		2. Employee
Nam	ne of Aggrieved Person		3. Appropriate Supervisor
			4. Superintendent
	LEVI	EL II	
A.	Date Violation Occurred		
B.	Section(s) of Agreement Violated		
C.	Statement of Grievance		
D.	Relief Sought		
E. :	Disposition by Principal or Immediate Supervisor	Signature	
		Signature	Date

#### LEVEL III

A. Signature of Aggrieved Person	Date Received by Superintendent
B. Disposition by Superintendent of	or Designee
	Signature of Superintendent or Designee Date
	LEVEL IV
Signature of Aggrieved Person	Signature of Association President
3.	
Date Submitted to Arbitration	Date Received by Arbitrator
C. Disposition and Award of Arbitrator	
	Giral GALINA BA
	Signature of Arbitrator Date

#### 2025-2026 TRIPOLI COMMUNITY SCHOOL COMBINED SALARY SCHEDULE

\$TEP 1 Base   TSS   Total   \$TEP 2 Base   TSS   Total   \$TEP 3 Base   TOtal   \$TEP 4 Base   TSS   Total   \$TEP 5 Base   TOtal   \$TEP 5 Base   TOtal   \$TEP 6 Base   TSS   Total   \$TEP 7 Base   TSS   Total   \$TEP 8 Base   TSS   Total   \$TEP 9 Base   TSS   Total   \$TEP 9 Base   TSS   TOtal   \$TEP 10 Base   TSS   TOtal   \$TEP 10 Base   TSS   TOTAL   \$TEP 11 Base   TOTAL   \$TEP 11 Base   TOTAL   \$TEP 12 Base   TSS   TOTAL   \$TEP 13 Base   TTSS   TOTAL   \$TEP 14 Base   TTSS   TOTAL   \$TEP 15 Base   TSS   TOTAL   \$TEP 16 Base   TSS   TOTAL   \$TEP 17 Base   TTSS   TOTAL   \$TEP 18 Base   TSS   TOTAL   \$TEP 19 Base   TSS   TOTAL   \$TEP 10 Base   TSS   TOTAL   \$TEP 11 Base   TTSS   TOTAL	Base Generator T\$\$ Indexed  1.00  B\$/BA  34,055.00  8,100.00  40,155.00  35,417.20  6,344.00  41,761.20  38,779.40  8,588.00  43,367.40  38,141.80  6,832.00  44,973.60  39,503.80  7,078.00  46,579.80  40,886.00  7,328.00  44,186.00  42,228.20	1.02  B \$/BA+8  34,736.10  6,222.00  40,958.10  36,125.54  6,470.88  42,596.42  37,514.99  6,719.76  44,234.75  38,904.43  6,968.64  45,873.07  40,293.88  7,217.52  47,511.40  41,683.32  7,466.40  49,149.72  43,072.76  7,715.28	1.04  B \$/BA+15  35,417.20 6,344.00 41,761.20 36,833.89 6,597.76 43,431.65 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33 7,886.56	1.08  B \$/BA+23  36,098.30  6,468.00  42,564.30  37,542.23  6,724.64  44,266.87  38,998.16  6,983.28  45,969.44  40,430.10  7,241.92  47,672.02  41,874.03  7,500.56  49,374.59  43,317.96  7,759.20  51,077.16	1.08  B \$/BA+30  38,779.40  6,588.00  43,367.40  38,250.58  6,851.52  45,102.10  39,721.76  7,115.04  46,836.79  41,192.93  7,378.56  48,571.49  42,684.10  7,642.08  50,306.18  44,135.28  7,905.60  52,040.88	1.10 MS/MA BS/BA+45 37,460.50 6,710.00 44,170.50 38,968.92 6,978.40 45,937.32 40,457.34 7,246.80 47,704.14 41,955.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.80 51,237.78 44,952.60 8,062.00 53,004.60	1.12 M S/MA+8 B S/BA+55 38,141.60 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,192.93 7,378.58 48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40 53,568.32
\$TEP 1 Base	1.00  B\$/BA  34,055.00  8,100.00  40,155.00  35,417.20  6,344.00  41,761.20  38,779.40  6,588.00  43,367.40  38,141.60  6,832.00  44,973.60  39,503.80  7,078.00  46,579.80  40,868.00  7,320.00  48,186.00  42,228.20	B \$/BA+8  34,736.10  6,222.00  40,958.10  36,125.54  6,470.88  42,596.42  37,514.99  6,719.76  44,234.75  38,904.43  6,968.64  45,873.07  40,293.88  7,217.52  47,511.40  41,683.32  7,466.40  49,149.72  43,072.76  7,715.28	B \$/BA+15 35,417.20 8,344.00 41,761.20 36,833.89 6,597.76 43,431.65 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	B\$/BA+23 38,098.30 6,466.00 42,564.30 37,542.23 6,724.64 44,266.87 38,988.16 6,983.28 45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,502.66 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	B\$/BA+30 38,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,721.75 7,115.04 46,836.75 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,664.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	MS/MA BS/BA+45 37,460.50 6,710.00 44,170.50 38,968.92 6,978.40 45,937.32 40,457.34 7,246.80 47,704.14 41,965.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.60 51,237.78 44,962.60 8,052.00	M S/MA+8 B \$/BA+55 38,141,60 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,192.93 7,378.58 48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
TSS Total  STEP 2 Base TSS Total  STEP 3 Base TSS Total  STEP 4 Base TSS Total  STEP 5 Base TSS Total  STEP 6 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total	B\$/BA 34,055.00 6,100.00 40,155.00 35,417.20 6,344.00 41,761.20 38,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,141.80 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,078.00 46,579.80 40,868.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	B \$/BA+8  34,736.10  6,222.00  40,958.10  36,125.54  6,470.88  42,596.42  37,514.99  6,719.76  44,234.75  38,904.43  6,968.64  45,873.07  40,293.88  7,217.52  47,511.40  41,683.32  7,466.40  49,149.72  43,072.76  7,715.28	B \$/BA+15 35,417.20 8,344.00 41,761.20 36,833.89 6,597.76 43,431.65 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	B\$/BA+23 38,098.30 6,466.00 42,564.30 37,542.23 6,724.64 44,266.87 38,988.16 6,983.28 45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,502.66 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	B\$/BA+30 38,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,721.75 7,115.04 46,836.75 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,664.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	MS/MA BS/BA+45 37,460.50 6,710.00 44,170.50 38,968.92 6,978.40 45,937.32 40,457.34 7,246.80 47,704.14 41,965.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.60 51,237.78 44,962.60 8,052.00	M S/MA+8 B \$/BA+55 38,141,60 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,192.93 7,378.58 48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
TSS Total  STEP 2 Base TSS Total  STEP 3 Base TSS Total  STEP 4 Base TSS Total  STEP 5 Base TSS Total  STEP 6 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	34,055.00 6,100.00 40,155.00 35,417.20 6,344.00 41,761.20 38,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,141.60 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,078.00 46,579.80 40,868.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	34,736.10 8,222.00 40,958.10 36,125.54 6,470.88 42,596.42 37,514.99 6,719.76 44,234.75 38,904.43 6,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	35,417.20 6,344.00 41,761.20 36,633.89 6,597.76 43,431.65 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.95 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	38,098.30 6,466.00 42,564.30 37,542.23 6,724.64 44,266.87 38,986.16 6,983.28 45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	36,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,721.75 7,115.04 46,836.79 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,664.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	B\$/BA+45 37,460.50 6,710.00 44,170.50 38,968.92 6,978.40 45,937.32 40,457.34 7,246.80 47,704.14 41,965.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.60 51,237.78 44,962.60 8,052.00	B\$/BA+\$5 38,141.60 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,192.93 7,378.58 48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
TSS Total  STEP 2 Base TSS Total  STEP 3 Base TSS Total  STEP 4 Base TSS Total  STEP 5 Base TSS Total  STEP 6 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	34,055.00 6,100.00 40,155.00 35,417.20 6,344.00 41,761.20 38,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,141.60 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,078.00 46,579.80 40,868.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	34,736.10 8,222.00 40,958.10 36,125.54 6,470.88 42,596.42 37,514.99 6,719.76 44,234.75 38,904.43 6,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	35,417.20 6,344.00 41,761.20 36,833.89 6,597.76 43,431.65 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.95 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	38,098.30 6,466.00 42,564.30 37,542.23 6,724.64 44,266.87 38,986.16 6,983.28 45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	36,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,721.75 7,115.04 46,836.79 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,664.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	37,480.50 8,710.00 44,170.50 38,958.92 8,978.40 45,937.32 40,457.34 7,246.80 47,704.14 41,955.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.80 51,237.78 44,952.60 8,052.00	38,141.60 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,192.93 7,378.58 48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
TSS Total  STEP 2 Base TSS Total  STEP 3 Base TSS Total  STEP 4 Base TSS Total  STEP 5 Base TSS Total  STEP 6 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	8,100.00 40,155.00 35,417.20 6,344.00 41,761.20 38,779.40 8,588.00 43,367.40 38,141.80 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,078.00 46,579.80 40,886.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	6,222.00 40,958.10 36,125.54 6,470.88 42,596.42 37,514.99 6,719.76 44,234.75 38,904.43 6,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	6,344.00 41,761.20 38,833.89 6,597.76 43,431.65 38,250.68 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,687.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.95 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	8,468.00 42,564.30 37,542.23 6,724.64 44,266.87 38,986.16 6,983.28 45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	8,588.00 43,367.40 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,721.75 7,115.04 46,836.79 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,684.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	8,710.00 44,170.50 38,958.92 6,978.40 45,937.32 40,457.34 7,248.80 47,704.14 41,955.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.80 51,237.78 44,952.60 8,052.00	6,832.00 44,573.60 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
Total	40,155.00 35,417.20 6,344.00 41,761.20 36,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,141.80 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,076.00 46,579.80 40,868.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	40,958.10 36,125.54 6,470.88 42,596.42 37,514.99 6,719.76 44,234.75 38,904.43 6,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,468.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	41,761.20 36,833.89 6,597.76 43,431.65 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,687.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.95 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	42,564.30 37,542.23 6,724.64 44,266.87 38,986.16 6,983.28 45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	43,367.40 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,721.75 7,115.04 46,836.79 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,684.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	44,170.50 38,958.92 6,978.40 45,937.32 40,457.34 7,246.80 47,704.14 41,955.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.80 51,237.78 44,952.60 8,052.00	44,973,60 39,667,26 7,105,28 46,772,54 41,192,93 7,378,56 48,571,49 42,718,59 7,651,84 50,370,43 44,244,26 7,925,12 52,169,38 45,769,92 8,198,40
STEP 2	35,417.20 6,344.00 41,761.20 36,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,141.80 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,076.00 46,579.80 40,868.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	38,125.54 6,470.88 42,596.42 37,514.99 6,719.76 44,234.75 38,904.43 6,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	36,833.89 6,597.76 43,431.65 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,687.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.95 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	37,542.23 6,724.64 44,266.87 38,986.16 6,983.28 45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	38,250.58 8,851.52 45,102.10 39,721.76 7,115.04 46,836.79 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,684.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	38,958.92 6,978.40 45,937.32 40,457.34 7,246.80 47,704.14 41,955.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.80 51,237.78 44,952.60 8,052.00	39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
TSS Total  STEP 3 Base TSS Total  STEP 4 Base TSS Total  STEP 5 Base TSS Total  STEP 6 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	8,344.00 41,761.20 36,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,141.60 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,076.00 46,579.80 40,868.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	6,470.88 42,596.42 37,514.99 6,719.76 44,234.75 38,904.43 6,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	6,597.78 43,431.65 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	6,724.64 44,266.87 38,986.16 6,983.28 45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	6,851.52 45,102.10 39,721.75 7,115.04 46,836.79 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,684.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	8,978.40 45,937.32 40,457.34 7,248.80 47,704.14 41,955.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.80 51,237.78 44,952.80 8,052.00	7,105.28 46,772.54 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
Total	41,761.20 36,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,141.80 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,076.00 46,579.80 40,868.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	42,596.42 37,514.99 6,719.76 44,234.75 38,904.43 6,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	43,431.65 38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	44,266.87 38,986.16 6,983.28 45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	45,102.10 39,721.75 7,115.04 46,836.79 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,664.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	45,937.32 40,457.34 7,248.80 47,704.14 41,955.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.80 51,237.78 44,952.80 8,052.00	46,772.54 41,192.93 7,378.58 48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
\$TEP 3	38,779.40 6,588.00 43,367.40 38,141.60 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,076.00 46,579.80 40,868.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	37,514.99 6,719.76 44,234.75 38,904.43 6,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	38,250.58 6,851.52 45,102.10 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	38,986.16 6,983.28 45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	39,721.75 7,115.04 46,836.75 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,684.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	40,457.34 7,246.80 47,704.14 41,955.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.80 51,237.78 44,952.80 8,052.00	41,192.93 7,378.58 48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
TSS Total  STEP 4 Base TSS Total  STEP 5 Base TSS Total  STEP 6 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	8,588.00 43,367.40 38,141.60 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,076.00 46,579.80 40,866.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	6,719.76 44,234.75 38,904.43 6,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	6,851.52 45,102.10 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	8,983.28 45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	7,115.04 46,836.79 41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,684.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	7,248.80 47,704.14 41,955.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.80 51,237.78 44,952.80 8,052.00	7,378.56 48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
Total  STEP 4 Base TSS Total  STEP 5 Base TSS Total  STEP 6 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	43,367.40 38,141.80 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,076.00 46,579.80 40,866.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	44,234.75 38,904.43 6,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 45,145.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	45,102.10 39,667.26 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	45,969.44 40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	46,836.79 41,192.93 7,378.58 48,571.49 42,684.10 7,842.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.80	47,704.14 41,955.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.80 51,237.78 44,952.80 8,052.00	48,571.49 42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
STEP 4   Base   TSS   Total	38,141.80 6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,078.00 46,579.80 40,866.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	38,904.43 6,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	39,687.28 7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	40,430.10 7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	41,192.93 7,378.56 48,571.49 42,664.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	41,955.76 7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.60 51,237.78 44,952.60 8,052.00	42,718.59 7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
TSS Total  STEP 5 Base TSS Total  STEP 6 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total	6,832.00 44,973.60 39,503.80 7,078.00 46,579.80 40,866.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	8,968.64 45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	7,105.28 46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	7,241.92 47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	7,378.56 48,571.49 42,664.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	7,515.20 49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.60 51,237.78 44,952.60 8,052.00	7,651.84 50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
Total  STEP 5 Base TSS Total  STEP 6 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	44,973.60 39,503.80 7,076.00 46,579.80 40,888.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	45,873.07 40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	46,772.54 41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	47,672.02 41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	48,571.49 42,664.10 7,642.08 50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	49,470.96 43,454.18 7,783.80 51,237.78 44,952.60 8,052.00	50,370.43 44,244.26 7,925.12 52,169.38 45,769.92 8,198.40
STEP 5   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 6   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 7   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 8   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 9   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 10   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 11   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 12   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 12   Base   TSS   Total	39,503.80 7,076.00 <b>46,579.80</b> 40,866.00 7,320.00 <b>48,186.00</b> 42,228.20	40,293.88 7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,486.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	41,083.95 7,359.04 48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	41,874.03 7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	42,684.10 7,842.08 <b>50,306.18</b> 44,135.28 7,905.60	43,454.18 7,783.60 <b>51,237.78</b> 44,952.60 8,052.00	44,244.26 7,925.12 <b>52,169.38</b> 45,769.92 8,198.40
TSS Total  STEP 6 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	7,078.00 46,579.80 40,868.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	7,217.52 47,511.40 41,683.32 7,468.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	7,359.04 48,442.95 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	7,500.56 49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	7,642.08 <b>50,306.18</b> 44,135.28 7,905.60	7,783.60 <b>51,237.78</b> 44,952.60 8,052.00	7,925.12 <b>52,169.38</b> 45,769.92 8,198.40
Total  STEP 6 Base TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	46,579.80 40,866.00 7,320.00 48,186.00 42,228.20	47,511.40 41,683.32 7,466.40 49,149.72 43,072.76 7,715.28	48,442.99 42,500.64 7,612.80 50,113.44 43,917.33	49,374.59 43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	50,306.18 44,135.28 7,905.60	<b>51,237.78</b> 44,952.60 8,052.00	<b>52,169.38</b> 45,769.92 8,198.40
STEP 6   Base   TSS   Total	40,888.00 7,320.00 <b>48,186.00</b> 42,228.20	41,683.32 7,466.40 <b>49,149.72</b> 43,072.76 7,715.28	42,500.64 7,612.80 <b>50,113.44</b> 43,917.33	43,317.96 7,759.20 51,077.16	44,135.28 7,905.60	44,952.60 8,052.00	45,769.92 8,198.40
TSS Total  STEP 7 Base TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base Total  STEP 11 Base TSS Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	7,320.00 <b>48,186.00</b> 42,228.20	7,468.40 <b>49,149.72</b> 43,072.78 7,715.28	7,612.80 <b>50,113.44</b> 43,917.33	7,759.20 <b>51,077.16</b>	7,905.60	8,052.00	8,198.40
Total  \$TEP 7	<b>48,186.00</b> 42,228.20	<b>49,149.72</b> 43,072.76 7,715.28	<b>50,113.44</b> 43,917.33	51,077.16	1,000.00	-,	_
STEP 7   Base   TSS   Total	42,228.20	43,072.76 7,715.28	43,917.33	$\overline{}$	52,040.88	53.004.60	53 902 32
TSS Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base Total  STEP 11 Base TOTAL  STEP 12 Base TSS Total		7,715.28		44,761.89		,	00,000.02
Total  STEP 8 Base TSS Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total			7 988 58		45,606.46	46,451.02	47,295.58
STEP 8   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 9   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 10   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 11   Base   Total     STEP 12   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 12   Base   TSS   Total	7,584.00		7,000.00	8,017.84	8,169.12	8,320.40	8,471.68
TSS Total STEP 10 Base TSS Total STEP 11 Base Total STEP 12 Base TSS Total STEP 12 Base TSS Total STEP 13 Base TSS TOTAL STEP 14 Base TSS TOTAL STEP 15 Base TSS TOTAL STEP 15 Base TSS TOTAL STEP 16 Base TSS TOTAL STEP 17 Base TSS TOTAL STEP 18 Base TSS TOTAL STEP 19 Base TSS TSS TOTAL STEP 19 Base TSS TSS TSS TSS TSS TSS TSS TSS TSS TS	49,792.20	50,788.04	51,783.89	52,779.73	53,775.58	54,771.42	55,767.26
Total  STEP 9 Base TSS Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	43,590.40	44,462.21	45,334.02	46,205.82	47,077.63	47,949.44	48,821.25
STEP 5   Base   TSS   Total	7,808.00	7,984.16	8,120.32	8,276.48	8,432.64	8,588.80	8,744.96
TSS Total STEP 10 Base TSS Total STEP 11 Base Total STEP 12 Base TSS Total STEP 12 Base TSS Total	51,398.40	52,426.37	53,454.34	54,482.30	55,510.27	56,538.24	57,566.21
Total  STEP 10 Base TSS Total  STEP 11 Base  Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	44,952.60	45,851.65	46,750.70	47,649.76	48,548.81	49,447.86	50,346.91
STEP 10   Base   TSS   Total     STEP 11   Base   Total     STEP 12   Base   TSS   Total	8,052.00	8,213.04	8,374.08	8,535.12	8,696.16	8,857.20	9,018.24
TSS Total STEP 11 Base Total STEP 12 Base TSS Total	53,004.60	54,064.69	55,124.78	56,184.88	57,244.97	58,305.06	59,365.15
Total STEP 11 Base  Total STEP 12 Base TSS Total	46,314.80	47,241.10	48,167.39	49,093.69	50,019.98	50,948.28	51,872.58
Total STEP 12 Base TSS Total	8,296.00	8,461.92	8,627.84	8,793.76	8,959.68	9,125.60	9,291.52
Total  STEP 12 Base TSS Total	54,610.80	55,703.02	56,795.23	57,887.45	58,979.66	60,071.88	61,164.10
STEP 12 Base TSS Total	47,677.00	48,630.54	49,584.08	50,537.62	51,491.16	52,444.70	53,398.24
STEP 12 Base TSS Total	8,540.00	8,710.80	8,881.60	9,052.40	9,223.20	9,394.00	9,564.80
TSS Total	56,217.00	57,341.34	58,465.68	59,590.02	60,714.36	61,838.70	62,963.04
TSS Total	49,039.20	50,019.98	51,000.77	51,981.55	52,962.34	53,943.12	54,923.90
Total	8,784.00	8,959,68	9,135.38	9,311.04	9.486.72	9,662,40	9,838.08
	57,823.20	58,979.66	60,136.13	61,292.59	62,449.06	63,605.52	64,761.98
STEP 13 Base		<del>                                     </del>	52,417.46	53,425,48	54,433.51	55,441.54	56,449.57
TSS			9,389.12	9,569.68	9,750.24	9,930.80	10,111.36
Total	XXXXXXXX	xxxxxxxx	61,806.58	62,995.16	64,183.75	65,372.34	66,560.93
STEP 14 Base			53,834.14	54,889,42	55,904.69	56,939.96	57,975.23
TSS		<del>                                     </del>	9,642.88	9,828.32	10.013.76	10.199.20	10,384.64
Total	WWW.	xxxxxxxx	63,477.02	64,697.74	65,918.45	67,139.16	68,359,87
STEP 15 Base	XXXXXXX		,		,-	58,438.38	59,500.90
TSS	XXXXXXXX	+ +	$\overline{}$	<del>-    </del>	<del></del>	10,487.60	10,657.92
Total	XXXXXXXX	xxxxxxxx	xxxxxxxx	xxxxxxxx	xxxxxxxx	68,905.98	70,158.82
IOIAI	XXXXXXXX	********	00000000	00000000	********	00,000.00	70,100.02

#### **Memorandum of Understanding**

The Tripoli Community School District and the Tripoli Education Association have reached an agreement to the items listed below in regard to the Master Contract articles that will be affected by the implementation of the local Teacher Leadership System (TLS). This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) shall be in effect as of the 2025-2026 school year and shall be reviewed and/or amended on an annual basis thereafter.

For the purposes of implementing the Teacher Leadership and Compensation System, the following articles will be impacted: Article XI Employee Work Year; Article XV Evaluation; Article XVI Voluntary Transfer; Article XVII Staff Reduction; and Article XIX Compensation. As a result, the following language is proposed to address each area.

#### 1. Selection Committee.

- A. The District will appoint a selection committee for the TLS. The Committee shall be comprised of equal number of teachers/administrators. The teachers will be appointed by the Association, and administrators will be appointed by the Superintendent (and may include the Superintendent).
- B. The Committee will accept and review applications for the TLS position and will make recommendations to the Board for appointment. In developing recommendations, the committee will utilize measures of teacher effectiveness and professional growth, consider the needs of the school district, and review the performance and professional development of the applicants. Teachers who are selected must meet all of the qualifications contained in the TLS grant and contained in the law.

#### 2. Selection of Teacher Leaders.

The Board will review the committee's recommendations and shall appoint teachers to serve in TLS positions. In making appointments, the Board will consider the needs of the school district and the performance and professional development of the applicants.

#### 3. Assignment of Teacher Leaders.

- A. Teachers assigned to TLS positions shall retain their regular teaching contract issued in accordance with lowa Code Chapter 279 and shall be issued a supplemental contract for a one-year assignment relating to their leadership role. The supplemental contract shall not be subject to Iowa Code Chapter 279.
  - B. The assignment of teachers to TLS positions shall not be subject to the transfer procedures contained in the collective bargaining agreement. No employee will be involuntarily assigned to a TLS position.
  - C. Prior to the resignation of a TLS position by a teacher and not later than the first Monday in February, the teacher will give notice to the School District. The teacher will be reinstated into the role of teacher and will placed into their former teaching category as defined in Article XVII B. (3. a, b, and c). Every effort will be made by the district to return the teacher to the same classroom role as they were in prior to entering a teacher leader role. This process will be completed prior to April 15 annually to ensure adequate time is allowed in the event staffing changes need to be considered.
  - D. Prior to the termination of a TLS position by the School District and not later than the first Monday of March, the District will give notice to the teacher.—The teacher will be reinstated into the role of teacher and will placed into their former teaching category as defined in Article XVII B. (3. a, b and c). Every effort will be made by the district to return the teacher to the same classroom role as they were in prior to entering a teacher leader role. This process will be completed prior to April 15<sup>th</sup> annually to ensure adequate time is allowed in the event staffing changes need to be considered.

#### 4. Teacher Leadership Compensation.

The salary supplements received by teachers assigned to TLS positions will be as specified in the District's approved Teacher Leadership grant application. The salary supplement is compensation to the teacher in the TLS position for the additional contract days and hours of work required of the teacher.

#### 5. Hours of Work.

Teachers in TLS positions will work the number of hours specified in Article XII and as necessary to perform the duties of their teaching and TLS position. The expectations of the District with regard to hours of work of teachers in TLS positions will be contained in both the job description and the Master Contract for certified staff for each TLS position. Duties will include expectations such as: parent-teacher conferences, regular duty assignments, school events, and other teaching-related duties assigned by the administration.

#### 6. Work Year.

Teachers in TLS positions will work the number of days specified in the District's approved Teacher Leadership grant application and as provided by law. The in-school work year for employees on a regular contract shall not exceed one hundred eighty-four (184) days for returning faculty and one hundred eight-five (185) days for new faculty. This shall include 170 days when pupils are in attendance; nine (9) in-service days (one (1) for new faculty (10); nine (9) in-service days; and four (4) conference evenings. The Teacher K-12 Curriculum/Professional Development Coordinator will have a supplemental contract of ten (10) days for a total of one hundred ninety four (194) days; the instructional coach will have a supplemental contract of eight (8) days for a total of one hundred ninety-two days (192); a model teacher will have a supplemental contract of two (2) days for a total of one hundred eighty-six (186) days, and a mentor teacher will have a supplemental contract of two (2) days for a total of one hundred eighty-six (186) days.

#### 7. Seniority.

Teachers in TLS positions will be considered members of the bargaining unit and will continue to accrue seniority in the classification to which they were assigned at the time of their selection for a TLS position.

#### 8. Procedures for Staff Reduction.

For purposes of staff reduction, teachers in TLS positions shall be considered members of the bargaining unit and shall be classified in the classification to which they were assigned at the time of their selection for the TLS position.

#### 9. Assessment of Performance.

The assignment of a teacher to a TLS position will be subject to review by the School District's administration at least annually. Teacher Leaders will be evaluated annually using the Teacher Leader Standards found at <a href="https://www.teacherleader.org">www.teacherleader.org</a>. Teacher Leaders will write SMART goals based on a set or subset of the Teacher Leader Standards in collaboration with the building principal. The review shall include peer feedback on the effectiveness of the teacher's performance of duties specific to the teacher's TLS position. A teacher who completes an assignment in a TLS position may apply for assignment to a new TLS position.

#### 10. Funding for Program.

Teacher Leadership Supplement Foundation Aid from the state shall be required to sustain the TLS program. The TLS salary will not be included in the salary schedule. Any reduction or elimination of this support will result in corresponding reduction or elimination of the assignments and compensation described in this Memorandum of Understanding.

#### 11. Separation from Teacher Evaluation.

This Memorandum of Understanding will establish a wall between the TLS system and the evaluation process for the performance of teaching duties. Teachers in TLS positions will not evaluate other teachers.

#### 12. TSS and TLC.

The Teacher Salary Supplement (TSS) amount for those hired to replace Teacher Leaders will be totally funded from the TLC grant amount.